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consists of three distinct geographicat areas: the central, flat Sec- ,.

tion of the Lower Savinja Vattey; to the north, the Loinica hitts with'nf,'!:':i"'''i'li;ii;'':';':

the karstified Ponikva plateau; and to the south, the northern edge
of the Posavje hitts between Mrztica (1177 m) and Gozdnik (1090
m) with the Zabukovica-Liboje Tertiary coal depression. The area
is drained by the Savinja in the south and the Loinica in the north,
together with their numerous tributaries. Despite regulation, these
rivers stit[ flood. Between the Savinja and the Lo2nica is an exten-
sive, mainty gravelty ptain, with Quaternary terraces that towards
the east sink below later atluvial deposits. The Municipatity of Zatec
covers an area of 116 km2. |n2002, its poputation was 20,535, divi-
ded among 39 setttements. The territory has a markedty transition-
a[ character, with an interweaving of many of the characteristics
of the pre-Atpine and sub-Pannonian worlds, and land use shows a
varied and diverse economic orientation that has contributed to the
thorough sociat re-stratification of the population and the transfor-
mation of settlements, and the culturat landscape in generat.
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The region's devetoped, mechanised and market-oriented agricut-
ture is dominated by hop-growing and livestock breeding, white
numerous sma[[ businesses and larger industrial ptants, whose pro-
duction is increasingty export oriented, provide the [ivelihood for
a large proportion of the non-agriculturaI poputation. The dense
transport network (the Cetje-Velenje,raitway, compteted in 1891 ,

the main Cetje-Ljubtjana road, and, since 1997, the Cetje-Trojane
section of the motorway), largely based on otd routes (some dat-
ing from Antiquity), has contributed significantty to the social and
physical mobitity of the poputation. This is reflected in its growth:
between 1900 and 2002 the poputation increased by fi4%; between
1948 and 2002 by 63%; between 1980 and 2002 by 9.4%; and be-
tween 1991 and 2002 by 2.1%. The targest expansion and growth
has occurred in settlements with devetoped non-agricutturat activi-
ties on the ptain, white towns on the margins and in the hitts have
regressed. The most important setttement is the town of Zal6c,
with 4,919 inhabitants. Other major setttements with devetoped,'
centratised non -agricultura[ commerciat, service- retated and othbr
infrastructure activities are to be found on the ptain or in the for-
mer mining/industrial areas (Sempeter, Loinica, Petrovie, Arja
Vas, Liboj e, G riie ) .

The Municipatity of Zatec has severat important cuttural and his-
toricat sights of nterest: Roman necropotis lnthe
otd town centre in Zatec with its numerous characteristic
and the tower buitt to defend the settlement from
renovated). and
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Few entirely natural areas survive in the Lower Savinja Vattey to-
day. To be more accurate, there are none at att, since even the
remnants that survive today have been subjected to human influ-
ence in one way or another. Neverthetess, the valtey can boast a
number of natural sights of interest that are worth visiting and have
a broader significance, too. ln the end, in a very sma[[ area we
can admire meadows, forests, standing water and a karst tandscape
that few other regions can boast.
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Severat cave systems have formed on the northern edge of the Sa-

vinja Vattey in the predominantly Triassic dotomite and limestone
of the isotated karst surrounded by impermeabte Oligocene rock.
Among the most famous sights is Pekel Cave (Jama Peket), situated
on the edge of the Ponikva Karst, which extends between the River
Savinja, Gora Otjka ('Mount of Otives') and the valley of the Pireiica
and Potzeta. Several streams flow atong the ptateau in a north-south
direction, and one of them, the Ponikvica, is responsible for cre-
ating Pekel Cave. At the point where the stream flows out of the
cave, it acquires another name - Pekten5dica. Peket Cave has two
levets: the [ower [eve[ is flooded and has severat tributaries. The
main entrance passage ends after a hundred metres or so in a siphon
that has the form of a narrow high passage and contains numerous
poots and waterfatls. The four-metre-high waterfatt is accessible to
visitors and is the highest waterfatt in any show cave in Stovenia.
Here, there is atso a passage to the dry upper levet. The cave, in
particutar its entrance section, was known to our distant ancestors.
By the 19th century it was atready receiving visitors and was even
used to hotd parties. Bones of a Neandertha[ man have been found
in the cave. lt is home to a rich variety of cave fauna.
It takes about an hour to watk through the part of the cave that is

open to visitors - just over a kitometre. And where does its unusual
name come from (Peket = Hett)? The cave was given its name by to-

cal fotk who saw a giant with horns in the rocks by the entrance and

betieved that he was standing at the entrance to He[t, the abode
of devits.
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Plateau

feature of the area surrounding the CAVC is the 'geo-
the forest. Peket Cave is not the onty cave in

is protected as the 'Ponikva Karst'karst area, which
approximately 40 km2. Other sights worth mentioning

Stone House (Ka m n ita hiSa) in the vattey of the Pireiica
quarry and the Secret Cave (Tajna jama), to the north

direction of Potzeta, betieved to be the tongest water cave

t'

&.

4



The
+ .;*
"B** --#' %*q

:,*gil*r*{+#$s*

Loinica and trreadoos

By the etectricity substation on the road leading to Pekel Cave, the
River LoZnica begins to meander its way through water meadows
that extend att the way to Potzeta. The meadows are a characteris-
tic feature of this zone, which covers around 100 hectares. At one
time there was grazing [and here, too. Among the meadows, which
are stitl watertogged in ptaces and are usuatty flooded in spring and
autumn, betts of trees and bushes grow and afford shetter to many
species of birds, amphibians and other tiny creatures. One interest-
ing bird to be found here is the Red-backed shrike Lonius colluio,
which is increasingty rare in Europe. Roe deer Capreolus capreolus

are also found here, and from time to time a fox can be seen
even in broad daytight. The area is given variety by individuat
groups of trees that are evidence of the forest that once cover-

ed the valley. ln the large wood near GruSovtje, in a section
where onty oaks Quercus robur grow, the traditions of 'litter-
ing' (gathering hay as bedding for animals) and mowing stitl
survive. This characteristic example of the use of towtand

oak forests gives the woods a unique appearance - that of a

city park. The forest groves are a sanctuary for many ani-
mals and birds.
Across the road, next to the substation, is a spring and
a washing ptace (for washing ctothes) that is stitt in use

today.
The Senek mansion in Potzeta, which today houses
a home for the etderly, has an ornamentat garden

with ctipped box hedges. On the other side of the house
there is a poo[, while the whote property is surrounded by a
well-kept park, criss-crossed by numerous wet[-worn paths. A

great variety of trees, some exotic, others do-
mestic, grow in the park, and many of them
have attained enormous dimensions. Particu-
larty noteworthy are the giant linden, the tu-
tip poptar and the Canadian hemtock. The park

has protected status.
The visitor's gaze witl atso be attracted by Novi

Kloiter, at the foot of the Zalole hitts. Originatty a

monastery and later converted into a mansion, it is now
abandoned and is fatting into ruin
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rbje Pond
South of Zatec, ctose to the Savinja River, lies an interesting pro-
tected area the centre of which is Vrbje Pond. Covering just over
13 hectares, it is the largest stretch of standing water in this part of
the vattey. Various species of carp are bred in the pond.
The pond atso has abundant and interesting flora and fauna. Over
130 species of birds have been observed here. One of the noisiest
of them is the great reed warbter Acrocephalus orundinacelts, which
nests among the reeds. The pond is atso home to the tittte bitt-
ern Ixobrychus minutus, the common moorhen Gallinula chloropus,
among other interesting birds. ln terms of cotourfuI ptumage, the
kingfisher Alcedo othis, which nests on the banks of the Savinja, is

unrivatted. ln autumn and winter the mute swan Cygnus olor attracts
most attention, white in spring and summer the great crested grebe

Podiceps cistatus is interesting for visitors. There is even more va-
riety at the time of the spring and autumn migrations, when great
numbers of ducks, herons, shorebirds and birds of prey stop here.
The birds share the pond with amphibians, the noisiest of which is

the European tree frog Hyla arborea. Dragonflies compete with the
birds in terms flying ability and cotourfutness. Despite their name
they are perfectty harmtess. Over 20 species have been observed
around the pond.
The plants growing on the banks of the pond and river inctude nu-
merous heating herb and edibte ptants. Plants are atso found in
the pond itsetf - for example, pondweeds, water mitfoit and duck-
weed.
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ln the past, when travetlers, Roman merchants or sotdiers, driven
around the wortd by the fates, crossed Atrons (Trojane), they en-
tered the territory of the Taurisci. The Taurisci were one of the
many Cettic tribes that from the 4th century BC settled the territory
of present-day Slovenia, inctuding the Savinja Vattey. By the end
of the 1't century BC, the Romans had annexed this territory, with
which they had cultivated early trading and potitica[ contacts, to
the Roman Empire. Some decades later they organised it as the
province of Noricum. The capitat of the region was Celeia (Celje),
which acquired town rights during the reign of the emperor Ctaudi-
us. The locat Cettic population soon adapted to the new conditions,
and some rich individuats occupied important politicat positions.
The Savinja Vatley was at that time connected by an important
traffic artery, the main Aquiteia-Emona-Celeia-Poetovio road (Aq-
uileia-Ljubljana-Celje-Ptuj) running along an earlier prehistoric
trading route, the so-catted 'Amber Road'. The remains of the Ro-
man road can stitt be seen today at Presedto. Road and post stations
(mansio, mutatio\ soon ap-
peared alongside the main
Roman road. Here, travet-
lers coutd change horses,
eat a mea[ or spend the
night if their journey was
a long one.
Not far from Trojane was

the first setttement (vi-

cus) in Vransko. This was
also the site of a Roman

*
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supptied the needs of the Roman army
at Loiica. At the end of the 2nd cen-
tury, Loiica pri Polzeli briefly served
as a camp of the Roman legio II ltolica.
This was the time of the first major
invasions by German tribes from be-
yond the Danube and a period of seri-
ous threats to the Empire. The legion
stationed at Lodica had the task of
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defending the area and the crossing from Trojane into the central
territory of the Roman Empire.
Halfway between Cetje and Trojane was a road station catted Ad
Medias. The exact location is not_known. We do know, however,
that the road led travetters on to Sempeter, where they coutd ad-
mire magnificent marbte tombs. lmportant famities from nearby
Celeia owned villoe rusticae in the fertile vatley and erected their
tombs on their estates. The potitical positions they hetd in Ceteia,
were recorded on their tombs. These positions were honorary and

unpaid. The surviving tombs inctude those of the mayors (Spectotii),
the supervisor of pubtic buitding (Vindonius) and the Ennii, a rich
Celtic famity. The surviving section of Roman road in the eastern
part of Sempeter shows us how wett the Romans maintained their
road system. We can tearn something about their everyday tife from
the items found in graves at Sempeter and disptayed in the archae-
otogica[ cotlection of the Regional Museum of Cetje. The Romans
quarried sandstone for the bases of their tombs in nearby Zaloie,
while the marbte was transported from Pohorje. The interior of
the Roman burial mound at Gomilsko was also tined with blocks
of marbte.
The rich archaeotogicat heritage of the Savinja Vatley can be seen
today in the cottections of the Regional Museum of Cetje.
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Zatec's origins as a market town are stil,t visibte in the eastern hatf
of today's town, between the parish church of St Nichotas and the
succursal church of St Canzian. The otd market town consists of
three separate sections: the western section, with its administra-
tive and ecctesiastical buitdings, dates from the 12th century; the
eastern section has its origins in the 13th century; and the central
section is from the 15th century. Zatec was granted market rights by
King Otakar !l between 1250 and 1754. The first owners of this ter-
ritory in the 11th century were the Friesach-Zettschach and Azhvin
famities. Between 1363 and 1 456 it belonged to the lords of Cetje,
whose estates graduatty expanded into the Lower Savinja Vattey and
effectivety controtted traffic atong it.
Notabte buitdings in the otd market town include: the church com-
plex, consisting of the church of St Nichotas, the defensive tower
and the Gothic/Renaissance 'Zottet's Forge', which in around 1580
served as a Protestant chapet; the cemetery of the church of St
Canzian, whose rectangutar sanctuary indicates its Romanesque ori-
gin; and a few houses from the 16tn, 17th and 18th centuries. With the
devetopment of Zatec, which was spurred in the mid-19th century
by the development of the hop-growing industry, the market town
continued to expand towards the west and south. The neoctassical
buitdings from the first hatf of the century were joined in the last
quarter of the century by examptes of historicist architecture. One
of these is the parish church, where Fortunat Bergant's altar picture
of St Nicholas can stitl be seen today.
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Novo Cetje Mansion in Dobriia Vas, near Zatec, is one of the most
important baroque mansions in Stovenia. Count Anton Gaisruck be-
gan building it in 1752 after acquiring a targe Cetje estate from the
Empress Maria Theresa. The ptans for the buitding were drawn up by
the important baroque architect Matthias Persky, who had moved
from Vienna to Ljubtjana. The mansion was compteted in 1767 for
Count Karl Gaisruck by the architect Lorenz Prager. Notabte fea-
tures of the buitding are the perfectty preserved great hatt with
its portraits of the counts of Gaisruck and the renovated chapel
with its frescoes by the painter Anton Lerchinger. The magnificent
main staircase and many of the rooms have stuccowork decoration.
Statues of Hercules and Samson - the work of the court scutptor
Veit Koniger from Graz - stand on ta[[ pedestats in front of the main
entrance. So.me of the mansion's tuxurious furnishings can today
be seen at the National Gattery and National Museum in Ljubtjana.
The mansion is surrounded by a large park, originatty taid out in the
baroque style, with a long beech avenue leading up to the main
entrance.
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r
won him acclaim in Europe

Risto Savin betongs to the generation of Stovene composers who,

though not professional musicians, made a significant contribution
to the modernisation of composition in Stovenia in the earty 20*'

century thanks to their technical expertise and modern aesthetic
views. Fottowing a period of study in Vienna, Savin's musical lan-
guage, which originalty disptayed Earty Romantic traits, gained Late
Romantic and even Impressionist features in which the influences of
models such as Brahms, Mahler, Richard Strauss, Wagner and even
Debussy can be detected. The composer's technicat gifts combined
with this stytistic breadth and his Stavonic roots to create a dis-

tinctive musicat language. His extensive oeuvre includes more than
50 orchestrat works, chamber pieces and compositions for piano,
operatic works such as Lepa Vida and Matija Gubec, and numerous
lieder and choral works, and represents an important addition to
the Stovenian musical repertoire.
Fottowing the First Wortd War he retired to Zatec and dedicated
himsetf entirety to composition. The Savin house in Zalec, where
Risto Savin was born, contains a memorial room dedicated to the
composer.
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